UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C.

In the Matter of
CERTAIN TELEVISIONS, REMOTE Investigation No. 337-TA-1263
CONTROLS, AND COMPONENTS
THEREOF

NOTICE OF A COMMISSION DETERMINATION EXTENDING THE DATES
FOR THE COMMISSION’S DECISIONS ON WHETHER TO REVIEW (1) A FINAL
INITIAL DETERMINATION AND (2) AN INITIAL DETERMINATION (ORDER
NO. 37) GRANTING SUMMARY DETERMINATION IN PART ON THE
INVALIDITY OF U.S. PATENT NO. 7,388,511 AND GRANTING A JOINT MOTION
FOR RECONSIDERATION OF MOTION DOCKET NO. 1263-015

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade Commission.
ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that the U.S. International Trade Commission has
determined to extend the dates for the Commission’s decisions on whether to review: (1) a final
initial determination (“ID”), and (2) an ID (Order No. 37) granting summary determination in
part on the invalidity of U.S. Patent No. 7,388,511 (“the *511 patent”) and granting a joint
motion for the reconsideration of Motion Docket No. 1263-015 in the above-captioned
investigation to October 5, 2022.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Michael Liberman, Esq., Office of the
General Counsel, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, SW, Washington, D.C.
20436, telephone (202) 205-2392. Copies of non-confidential documents filed in connection
with this investigation may be viewed on the Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS) at
https.//edis.usitc.gov. For help accessing EDIS, please email EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. General
information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its Internet server at
https.://www.usitc.gov. Hearing-impaired persons are advised that information on this matter
can be obtained by contacting the Commission’s TDD terminal on (202) 205-1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The Commission instituted this investigation on
May 14, 2021, based on a complaint filed on behalf of Roku, Inc. (“Roku”) of San Jose,
California. 86 FR 26542-43 (May 14, 2021). The complaint, as supplemented and amended,
alleged violations of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, based
upon the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, and the sale within the
United States after importation of certain televisions, remote controls, and components thereof
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by reason of infringement of one or more of claims 1-5, 8-11, and 14 of U.S. Patent No.
8,378,875 (“the *875 patent”) and claim 5 of the 511 patent. The amended complaint further
alleged that an industry in the United States exists or is in the process of being established. The
Commission’s notice of investigation named numerous parties as respondents. The
Commission’s Office of Unfair Import Investigations is not named as a party in this
investigation.

On June 24, 2022, the presiding Administrative Law Judge (“the ALJ”) issued an ID
(Order No. 37) granting summary determination in part on the invalidity of the 511 patent and
granting a joint motion for the reconsideration of Motion Docket No. 1263-015. On July 1,
2022, complainant Roku filed a petition for review of Order No. 37. On July 11, 2022,
respondents Universal Electronics Inc.; Gemstar Technology (Qinzhou) Co. Ltd.; Gemstar
Technology (Yangzhou) Co. Ltd.; C.G. Development Ltd.; Universal Electronics BV; CG
México Remote Controls, S. de R.L. de C.V.; Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd.; Samsung
Electronics America, Inc.; LG Electronics, Inc.; and LG Electronics USA, Inc. filed a response to
Roku’s petition for review of Order No. 37.

On June 28, 2022, the ALJ issued a final ID on violation of section 337 and
recommended determination on remedy and bond finding no violation of section 337. On July
11, 2022, complainant Roku filed a petition for review of the final ID. Likewise, on July 11,
2022, respondents Universal Electronics Inc.; Gemstar Technology (Qinzhou) Co. Ltd.; Gemstar
Technology (Yangzhou) Co. Ltd.; C.G. Development Ltd.; Universal Electronics BV; CG
México Remote Controls, S. de R.L. de C.V; Charter Communications, Inc., Charter
Communications Operating, LLC, and Spectrum Management Holding Company, LLC; Altice
USA, Inc., Cablevision Systems Corp., and Cequel Communications, LLC d/b/a Suddenlink
Communications; and WideOpenWest, Inc. filed a contingent petition for review of the final ID.

The Commission has determined to extend the dates for determining whether to review
the final ID and Order No. 37 to October 5, 2022.

The Commission vote for this determination took place on September 29, 2022.

The authority for the Commission’s determination is contained in section 337 of the
Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, and in Part 210 of the Commission’s Rules of
Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR part 210.

By order of the Commission.
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Katherine M. Hiner
Acting Secretary to the Commission

Issued: September 30, 2022



